
MAYOR  CITY MANAGER 

Shirley Sessions Dr. Shawn Gillen 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Barry Brown, Mayor Pro Tem Jan LeViner 

Brian West  

Jay Burke CITY ATTORNEY 
Nancy DeVetter Edward M. Hughes 

Spec Hosti 
Monty Parks  

 CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

September 14, 2023 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Announcements 
 
Recognitions and Proclamations 

1. Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Quarter:  Antar Khaalis 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda 
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

2. Minutes, City Council Meeting, August 24, 2023 
 
Reports of Staff, Boards, Standing Committees and/or Invited Guest.  Limit reports to 10 
minutes. 

3. Mike McCan, Ambucs, Beach Wheelchairs 
4. Tiffany Hayes, Chief, Tybee Island Police Department:  K-9 Program 
5. Jaime Spear:  Annual Employee Evaluation and Compensation Procedures 

 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please come forward.  Please limit your comments to 3 - 5 minutes. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Public Hearings 

6. MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: Requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones Ave 
-40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.  

 
 
 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Consideration of Local Requests & Applications – Funding, Special Events, Alcohol License 
7. Agenda Request: Friends of the Tybee Post Theater dba Tybee Post Music Festival 

Hotel Tybee 1401 Strand Ave add liquor to the existing beer and wine permit.   
 

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
8. DPW:  Purchase of a Pickup Truck, 2023 Nissan Frontier, 4x4 Crew Cab,  for Recycling 

Crew.  Funding for this truck is in the City of Tybee Island’s Fiscal Year 2024 approved 
budget, adopted June 22, 2023. The budget item for Public Work Vehicles was $50,000 
and was a Capital purchase under account number 350-4210-54-2500, Itemized List of 
Capital Requests. 

9. Out of State Travel:  Pete Gulbronson:  Regional Storm Water Conference, October 4 - 
6, 2023, Hilton Head, SC.  Continuing Education Units to retain Professional Engineering 
License for the State of Georgia.  Total cost $1,075 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 

10. Tracy O'Connell:   
 Amendment Agreements on Retirement Benefits with Moseley and Fobes 

11. Barry Brown:   

 Memorial Park, Volleyball/Pickleball Court location 
 New Municipal Building 

 
Minutes of Boards and Committees 

12. Minutes, TIMSC July 24, 2023 
13. Minutes, Planning Commission, August 21, 2023 

 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 
should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 

prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 
Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 3 -



File Attachments for Item:

2. Minutes, City Council Meeting, August 24, 2023

- Page 4 -



City Council Minutes, August 24, 2023 
 
Mayor Sessions called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, August 24, 2023.  Those in 
attendance were, Monty Parks, Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  
Also attending were Michelle Owens, Acting City Manager; Bubba Hughes, City Attorney; 
Tracy O’Connell, City Attorney, and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.  Dr. Gillen was not 
present. 
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Sessions introduced the qualified candidates that will be running in the 
Municipal Election, November 7, 2023.  She thanked everyone for their interest in 
running for office.   
 
Michelle Owens gave a brief update on City Hall.  Move date in scheduled for late 
October to mid-November.   
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  

 City Council Meeting Minutes, July 13, 2023 
 Alcohol License: Special Event, Beer/Wine-Peace Officers Assoc. of GA dba Peace Officers 

Training Conf. Hotel Tybee-1401 Strand Ave 

 Alcohol License: Beer/Wine Special Event-Friends of the Tybee Post Theater dba Tybee 
Post Music Festival, One Day Special Event: November 4, 2023 Hotel Tybee, 1401 Strand 
Ave 

 Agenda Request: Alcohol License-Beer/Wine: Special Event: Tybee Festival Association 
dba Tybee Pirate Fest Two Day Special Event: October 7-8, 2023, 16th Street Parking Lot 

 Reimbursement Resolution 
 
Reports of Staff 
Tiffany Hayes, Chief, Tybee Island Police Department, approached Mayor and Council to speak 
to the New K-9 Program (Information Only).  Chief Hayes introduced Officer Kendrick and the 
new puppy.  Officer Kendrick explained his qualifications as a K-9 Handler and his goals for the 
City with the program.  He further explained the cost to the City which is far less than normal as 
the City has received numerous donations to include the dog.  Mr. Hosti stated he is in support 
of the program.  Mayor pro tem Brown asked Officer Kendrick if there is anyone else in the 
Department that can train or is he the only one.  Officer Kendrick stated no, he would be the sole 
trainer and handler and on call at all times.  Chief Hayes stated there is money in the budget for 
additional staff and the puppy would be considered staff.  Mr. Parks thanked Chief Hayes for 
reaching out to other municipalities and researching grant opportunities. Mayor pro tem Brown 
recommended moving forward with the program.  Ms. Owens explained there is money in the 
budget for staff and the K-9 would be considered staff.  Ms. O’Connell recommended Mayor and 
Council give Staff direction moving forward.  Mayor pro tem Brown made a motion for Chief Hayes 
to bring back at next council meeting.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 
5-0. 
 
Chief Hayes then recognized the two receiptants of the Better Together Scholarship Award.  This 
is a scholarship program for the citizens of Tybee Island and will be an annual event.  This is a 
reimbursement scholarship and the student had to write or draw something.  The winners are 

- Page 5 -Item #2.



Noah Williams and Andrew Williams.  Chief Hayes asked them to come forward.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked both Chief Hayes for this scholarship program.   
 
Ms. LeViner introduced Master Chief Reisner, Coast Guard Tybee and the other leaders of the 
Coast Guard units in Chatham County.  Mayor Sessions read a Proclamation for Coast Guard 
Month and each received a Certificate of Appreciation.   Mayor Sessions thanked them all for 
their dedication not only to the Coast Guard but also to the City. 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum 
allowable times of 5 minutes. 
Nick Sears approached Mayor and Council to speak to Unauthorized STR Permits in the 
residential neighborhoods.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Sears for his comments (attached). 
 
Sarah Jones approached Mayor and Council to speak to the Lighthouse Preservation 
Project.  Ms. Jones explained the project and associated costs as the Historical Society solely 
owns and controls the Tybee Island Light Station including the Tybee Island Lighthouse except 
for the light and the lens.  They do not have federal funding and get revenue through admissions 
and donations.  She is asking for community ($500,000) as well as City support.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Ms. Jones and encouraged citizens to help.   
 
Pat Leiby approached Mayor and Council to speak to the MLK Non-Profit Allocation.  Ms. 
Leiby is asking for a line item that would be separate from other non-profits as they present the 
cultural diversity that the City does not have a staff person.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Leiby 
for her comments. 
 
Kathryn Williams approached Mayor and Council to speak in favor of the Lighthouse 
Preservation Project. Ms. Williams encouraged Mayor and Council approve funding in the 
amount of $25,000 to the project.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Williams for her comments.  
 
William Mosely approached Mayor and Council to speak to the Special Election.  Mr. Moseley 
would like to run for the council seat vacated by Brian West.  He asked Mayor and Council to 
change the existing ordinance regarding pausing his retirement if he should be elected to the 
Council.  Ms. O’Connell confirmed the current adoption agreement.  She will move forward with 
researching the changes to the ordinance and being before Mayor and Council for adoption. 
 
Nancy DeVetter made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Jay Burke seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
Preliminary FY23 Budget Amendment. Monty Parks asked Ms. Amerell to explain the 
amendment.  Ms. Amerell stated the biggest surplus is in Community Development as they had 
budgeted for contract services and they did not use the funds.  Other software programs were 
moved from that department to the Finance Department.  Mr. Parks thanked Ms. Amerell for her 
explanation.  Monty Parks made a motion to approve.  Jay Burke seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Tybee Island Fire and Rescue:  Purchase 2005 F550 super Duty Crew Cab Squad 
Truck.  Capital Fund Acct. 350-3510-54-1300 currently available balance is 
$200,000.00 Cost for Apparatus is $50,000.00. Mr. Parks asked for an explanation.  Chief 
Kendrick stated the funds are coming from the line item for the building that was to be renovated 
and was downsized.  He confirmed that truck would be Squad 1.  Mr. Parks asked the purpose of 
the F150.  Chief Kendrick stated it will remain in the fleet and will be used to maneuver equipment.  

- Page 6 -Item #2.



Mr. Parks asked if the building was not more important than the vehicle as this would give 
everyone separate showers, which is important.  Chief Kendrick stated this is still being done but 
now on a smaller scale.  Ms. Owens stated Chief Kendrick was able to find a vehicle at a very 
reasonable price, which probably will not be available next year.  Chief Kendrick stated a new 
vehicle would cost approximately $250,000.  Monty Park made a motion to approve.  Barry 
Brown seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Tybee Island Fire and Rescue:  Purchase 2019 22.2 Zodiac Pro 7 Rigid Inflatable Boat, 
Capital Fund Acct. 350-3510-54-2500 currently available balance is $90,000.00 Cost 
for Boat is $78,200 including trailer and delivery. This is a budgeted expense in the 
FY24 budget.  Mr. Parks stated during the budget process, he approved the budget so as not 
to delay but he is not in favor of purchasing a boat and not in favor of moving forward with this 
purchase.  The City is paying the County for this service as well as the support of other agencies 
such as the Coast Guard.  He continued, he has a deep concern by putting the City’s officers in 
danger and at risk during a stormy night.  Chief Kendrick stated he has a SOP that they are still 
developing which outlines when you go on a rescue and when it is too dangerous.  Mr. Parks 
asked where the boat would be docked.  Chief Kendrick stated it would not be docked in the 
water but secured at the fire station.  In this way, it can be launched where needed.  Mr. Hosti 
offered an alternative to the proposed purchase as there are other options such as a 21’ Carolina 
Skiff which is priced around $53,000.  Ms. O’Connell clarified the cost of the boat, trailer, and 
delivery is $78,290. Mr. Parks stated he still does that agree with this purchase and will not vote 
to approve.  Mr. Hosti stated he is in favor of purchasing a boat but feels there are other options 
that are more sensible.  Mayor pro tem Brown stated he is in favor of this purchase, Ms. DeVetter 
also is in favor of this purchase.  Nancy DeVetter made a motion to approve.  Barry Brown 
seconded.  Voting in favor were Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Voting 
against was Monty Parks.  Motion to approve, 4-1. 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
Bubba Hughes:  Patel vs Tybee Authorization/Agreement.  Ms. O’Connell stated a claim 
was made and filed against the City by Mr. Patel regarding the City’s utility lines which they 
believed were improperly placed.  The Patel’s are now wishing to sell the property and as part of 
that, the City is trying to resolve the law suite at the same time.  In order for the work to be 
done, the estimated cost is $35,000.  The City would fund part of the work, $8,750 and GIRMA 
would contribute $8,000.  The City would also add the remaining $750.  Ms. O’Connell is 
requesting Mayor and Council allow the legal team to move forward with the settlement subject 
to the attorney finalizing the agreements.  Spec Hosti made a motion to approve.  Barry Brown 
seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Bubba Hughes:  Tom Gehl, Government Relations Services.  Mayor Sessions explained 
the duties of Mr. Gehl as the Lobbyist for the City.  This would also assist with the recent 
Resolutions sent to the State regarding unpermitted events and closing the beach and Highway 
80 due to extreme circumstances.  Mr. Gehl gave the City three options for his services.  One 
option being $25,000 to start working with the State appointed attorney to work with our legal 
team.  Mr. Hughes stated Mr. Gehl was the Lobbyist for GMA for over 20 years prior to his starting 
his current company and comes highly recommended.  Mr. Hughes stated he would like the 
legislation to include enhanced penalties for the promoters who benefit monetarily from these 
projects without considering the public safety of the citizens. He continued, what is proposed is 
if Mr. Gehl would work on behalf of the City in helping us secure appropriate support to get a Bill 
passed. Mr. Hosti stated the biggest issue are the pop-up events and it is his recommendation 
the City employ Mr. Gehl for Option #3, and if it is effective, then proceed with a year contract.  
Mr. Parks thanked Mayor Sessions for her passion but he is not in favor of moving forward with 
employing Mr. Gehl due to his inexperience with this type of issue(s).  He would also like to know 

- Page 7 -Item #2.



how he would report progress to Mayor and Council.  Mr. Hughes stated there is a Scope of Work, 
which includes communicating with Mayor and Council as well as with himself.  He confirmed Mr. 
Gehl was a Lobbyist for GMA so he is experienced.   Spec Hosti made a motion to approve 
Option #3 ($25,000).  Barry Brown seconded.  Voting in favor were Spec Hosti, Jay Burke and 
Barry Brown.  Voting against were Nancy DeVetter and Monty Parks.  Motion to approve, 3-2. 
 
Barry Brown:  Functional Fire Hydrants.  Mayor pro tem Brown stated it has come to his 
attention there are inoperative fire hydrants in the City that have “out of order” signs on them.  
After further research, there are ten (10) fire hydrants that are not in service.  Ms. Owens stated 
nine (9) have been repaired and the last one is due to be repaired the next day.  Mayor pro tem 
Brown asked why these hydrants were not repaired in a timely manner.  Mr. Gulbronson stated 
the fire department tests the hydrants regularly and it is his understanding he hydrant was not 
out of order for two years.  He explained that there was no flushing of the hydrants due to the 
tower being down.  Also during that time, there were staff issues which caused major delays.  
Since, Mr. Gulbronson stated, a new program has been initiated, a work order system, which will 
be a joint effort for flushing.  Shari Hayes approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Hayes explained 
she only received notification of the said hydrant in December 2022.  She continued they are 
working with the fire department and the new system to ensure all hydrants are working properly.  
Chief Kendrick stated he is working with Ms. Owens to ensure citizens are aware of when hydrants 
are not working properly and the repair process.  Mr. Parks stated in researching other 
municipalities, there are ordinances in place requiring annual testing of hydrants.  He asked Mr. 
Hughes and Ms. O’Connell to move forward with such ordinance for Tybee.  He would also like 
the results of testing annually to be tested on the website.  Ms. Owens confirmed the process 
with the new work order system.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Owens for working with the Staff 
to resolve the problem and working toward a solution.  No motion needed. 
 
Mayor Sessions asked Mr. Hughes and Mr. Gulbronson for an update on the deep water well.  
Mr. Hughes stated GEFA had litigation, which went on for years regarding attempting to install a 
deep well near DPW.  The case has since been settled and a portion of that money belongs to 
Tybee.  The City needs to make a decision in going forward is realistic for what a treatment facility 
would cost.  When the well failed, water was never tested.  Mr. Hughes confirmed any monies 
received would be earmarked for a deep well and cost may inhibit moving forward with a new 
well.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Hughes. 
 
Michelle Owens gave an update for the  Procedures for Dump Fees.  Ms. Owens stated she 
was tasked to develop a plan to allow free dumping for residents.  Mr. Gulbronson stated the 
program would become effective October 1, 2023 for city residents only.  Residents would need 
proof of residency, driver license or utility bill, to use the program.  It would also be limited to 
personal owned vehicles and a single axle trailer.  Vehicles with a business logo would not be 
allowed to have dump charges waived.  Spec Hosti made a motion to approve with the use of 
driver’s license and/or utility bill for identification.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
5-0 to approve.  
 
Michelle Owens gave an update on the procedures by Main Street for Non-profit Grants.  
Ms. Owens stated in the past the request for non-profit grants increased and she was tasked with 
developing a program.  At that point, it was moved out of the Finance Department into the Main 
Street Program as one of their principals is organization.  The requirements put in place were 
they have a 5013-C or 5013-C6 designation, explain how the money will be used, and the total 
amount for the non-profit grants was capped at $10,000.  This includes cash and city services.  
Mr. Hosti thanked Main Street for taking on this task, as there is now structure to the grants.  Ms. 
Owens explained the $10,000 includes not only cash but also city services. Mr. Parks thanked 
Main Street as well for their efforts but he does not agree with “in-kind” as a cash donation.  He 

- Page 8 -Item #2.



 

would like to motion that Mayor and Council decide prior to approval of the budget, the non-profit 
level and what donation they receive.  He would like it to be council decision and “in-kind” not be 
treated as cash, but as “in-kind”.  Ms. DeVetter was under the impression a process would be 
brought before Mayor and Council for discussion and then a decision would be made going 
forward. She also asked if there was a written policy.  Ms. Owens confirmed and stated she will 
be happy to bring a presentation back for Mayor and Council to review.  Ms. DeVetter responded 
she would like to be clear on the process.  Monty Parks made a motion to approve as presented.  
Jay Burke seconded.  Discussion:  Ms. DeVetter would like applications included in the packet 
before them tonight for consideration for the public record.  Voting in favor were Monty Parks, 
Barry Brown, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Voting against was Nancy DeVetter.  Motion to approve 
4-1. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss real estate, 
personnel and litigation.  Nancy DeVetter seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 
5-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to return to regular session.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve 5-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
to approve, 5-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:30PM 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 9 -Item #2.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Jaime Spear:  Annual Employee Evaluation and Compensation Procedures

- Page 10 -



- Page 11 -Item #5.



- Page 12 -Item #5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: Requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones Ave -

40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III. 

- Page 13 -



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION                                      CITY MANAGER  
Julie A. Livingston                                      Shawn Gillen 
Robert J. Matkowski  
Elaine McGruder  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
S. Michelle Nooney                                      George Shaw                 
Whitley Reynolds              
Marie Rodriguez             CITY ATTORNEY 
Anthony J. Turpin             Edward M. Hughes   
               
                                                                                                                                                               

 
Planning Commission Meeting AGENDA 

August 21, 2023 – 6:30 p.m. 
For City Council Meeting September 14, 2023 – 6:30 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to order: 
 
B. Consideration of Minutes: 
 1. Minutes of July 17, 2023 

 
C. Disclosures/Recusals: 

 
D. Old Business: 
 
E. New Business: 
 

1. MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones 
Ave -40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.  
 

 

 
Ajournement :  

      Lisa L. Schaaf 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 

- Page 14 -Item #6.



- Page 15 -Item #6.



- Page 16 -Item #6.



- Page 17 -Item #6.



- Page 18 -Item #6.



- Page 19 -Item #6.



- Page 20 -Item #6.



- Page 21 -Item #6.



- Page 22 -Item #6.



- Page 23 -Item #6.



- Page 24 -Item #6.



- Page 25 -Item #6.



- Page 26 -Item #6.



- Page 27 -Item #6.



- Page 28 -Item #6.



- Page 29 -Item #6.



- Page 30 -Item #6.



- Page 31 -Item #6.



- Page 32 -Item #6.



- Page 33 -Item #6.



- Page 34 -Item #6.



- Page 35 -Item #6.



- Page 36 -Item #6.



- Page 37 -Item #6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. Agenda Request: Friends of the Tybee Post Theater dba Tybee Post Music Festival-add liquor

to existing beer and wine   

- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -Item #7.



- Page 40 -Item #7.



- Page 41 -Item #7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. DPW:  Purchase of a Pickup Truck, 2023 Nissan Frontier, 4x4 Crew Cab,  for Recycling 

Crew.  Funding for this truck is in the City of Tybee Island’s Fiscal Year 2024 approved budget, 

adopted June 22, 2023. The budget item for Public Work Vehicles was $50,000 and was a 

Capital purchase under account number 350-4210-54-2500, Itemized List of Capital Requests.

- Page 42 -



C:\Users\Meetingsofficeuser5\Appdata\Local\Temp\Tmpfed3.Tmp 
 

  City of Tybee Island 
 
Memorandum 
To:  City of Tybee Island City Council Members 
From:  Pete Gulbronson, City Engineer/Director of Infrastructure 
Date:  September 1, 2023 
Re:  Purchase of Pickup truck for Recycling 
 
 
Background 
In the FY2024 City of Tybee Island approved budget, the Department of Public Works (DPW) 
budgeted for a Pickup truck to replace the existing truck used by the recycling crew.  Due to the 
existing condition of the current recycling truck, DPW searched on-line inventories from 
dealerships for pickup trucks with crew cabs that are in stock.   
 
Overview 
After an extensive on-line search, staff found three (3) vehicles that met our specifications and 
were within budget.  The quotes were as follows: 
 
Grainer Nissan of Savanah has a 2023 Nissan Frontier 4 X 4 Crew Cab for the selling price of 
$38,117.00. 
 
Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram of South Savannah has a 2023 Dodge Ram 1500 Tradesman for the 
selling price of $39,874.00 
 
J.C. Lewis of Savannah has a 2023 Ford Ranger XLT for the selling price of $41,899.00 
 
The City will be trading in multiple fleet vehicles for the purchase of this new pick-up truck.  Two 
of the trade-ins are out of service fleet vehicles, a 2007 Ford F-150 and a 2006 Ford F-250 
Super Duty.  The current 2006 Chevrolet Silverado, being used by the recycling crew, will also 
be traded in.  After trade-ins, discounts, and dealer fees the total cost for the 2023 Nissan 
Frontier 4 X 4 Crew Cab from Grainger Nissan is $24,920.00. 
 
Summary 
Funding for this truck is in the City of Tybee Island’s Fiscal Year 2024 approved budget, adopted 
June 22, 2023. The budget item for Public Work Vehicles was $50,000 and was a Capital 
purchase under account number 350-4210-54-2500, Itemized List of Capital Requests. 
 
Recommended Next Steps: 
Based on the price and trade in value of the out of service fleet vehicles, I would recommend the 
purchase of the 2023 Nissan Frontier 4 X 4 Crew Cab from Grainer Nissan of Savannah, for 
$24,920.00. 

- Page 43 -Item #8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. Out of State Travel:  Pete Gulbronson:  Regional Storm Water Conference, October 4 - 6, 

2023, Hilton Head, SC.  Continuing Education Units to retain Professional Engineering License 

for the State of Georgia.  Total cost $1,075

- Page 44 -



C:\Users\Meetingsofficeuser5\Appdata\Local\Temp\Tmpf5e0.Tmp 

1 
 

  City of Tybee Island 
 
Memorandum 
To:  City of Tybee Island City Council Members 
From:  Pete Gulbronson, City Engineer/Director of Infrastructure 
Date:  August 28, 2023 
Re:  Out of State Travel for Pete Gulbronson 
 
 
Background 
 
The 18th Annual Regional Storm Water Conference sponsored by Southeastern Storm Water 
Association (SESWA) will be held in Hilton Head, South Carolina from October 4, 2023 through 
October 6, 2023.  By attending this conference all three days I will obtain 10 Continuing 
Education Units (CEU’s) which are part of the required CEU’s to retain my Professional 
Engineering License in the state of Georgia. 
 
Overview 
 
The conference is designed with topics from resiliency planning, programs to alleviate flooding, 
and other various programs which will be beneficial to the City of Tybee Island.  The registration 
for the three day conference is $575 and lodging will be an additional $500, for a total cost of 
$1,075. 
 
Summary 
 
Funding for this conference is in the approved FY 2024 budget, adopted on June 22, 2023.  The 
account line number is 100-4210-52-3500, travel and training.  For continuing education, the 
Department of Public Works budgeted $5,000 and has enough money in the budget to cover the 
cost of this conference. 
 
 
Recommended Next Steps: 
 
I would recommend the out of state travel for Pete Gulbronson, City Engineer and Director of 
Infrastructure to attend the 18th Annual SESWA conference in Hilton Head, South Carolina from 
October 4, 2023 through October 6, 2023.  
 

- Page 45 -Item #9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. Tracy O'Connell:  Amendment Agreements on Retirement Benefits with Moseley and Fobes

- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -Item #10.



- Page 48 -Item #10.



- Page 49 -Item #10.



- Page 50 -Item #10.



File Attachments for Item:

13. Minutes, TIMSC July 24, 2023

- Page 51 -



Minutes of July 24, 2023 
  
Present: Jim Alexander, Doug Duch, Jeanne Hutton, Carol Pride, Mark Reed, Kathryn 
Williams, Ruthie Wilson, Katie Wohlust, and Executive Director, Chantal Audran. 
 
By Zoom:  Nancy Daves 
 
Absent: Jim Bentley, Dave Makel, Karen Robertson, 
 
Welcome/Introductions:  Duch welcomed everyone and requested that board members 
start thinking of potential new members to replace the two members rolling off at the 
end of December.  Names should be submitted to Duch. 
 
Minutes of the May 23, 2023 meeting: Approved online by majority vote and submitted 
to the Clerk of Council, Tybee Island. 
 
Executive-Director Bimonthly Report 
 
Communications: 

 Audran collaborated with Manomet and designed trifolds with sea turtle and 
bird info.  The trifolds were distributed to all hotels and STR management 
companies by Wilson, Hutton, and Williams. 

 A big advertising push is underway.  Ads are in or being planned for the following 
publications:  COTI map, Girl Scouts, 100 Miles, Birthplace Bound, and the Rivers 
End Campground map.  Audran plans to also utilize banners and laminated 
posters to promote the center.  Plans are to promote the 2024 Turtle Trot during 
the 2023 Critz Race. 

 A podcast with Dee Daniels is under consideration for 2024. 

 Audran partnered with Georgia Conservancy on dune cross-over signage.  Four 
additional signs will be added.  There was discussion about the sand dollar & sea 
turtle signs being relocated to the beachside rather than parking lot side of the 
crossovers and the need for adequate signage to educate beachgoers.  

Programming 

 Staff members have been trained in CPR; an AED is on order.  The Tybee Island 
Fire Department arranged the training through the American Red Cross. 

 A sink and lights have been added to the open-air classroom. 
Exhibit Fabrication  

 Thermal solar and pavilion donor signage is near completion. 

 A sea turtle workshop is being planned in conjunction with Ike’s planned release. 

 Exhibits to be completed in the East Gallery include the marlin spike, Littlejohn 
signage, marine debris, and the Right Whale to Save. 

 Joy Davis is back in town to work on the Right Whale exhibit.  She and Audran 
will hold the 50% completion meeting this week. 

- Page 52 -Item #13.



 Audran will be meeting with Forsyth Metal Works to update the donor wall. 
Operations 

 Interviews for a new bookkeeper are underway. 

 The annual data collection (ADC) has been updated. 

 Sign-ups for nest excavations have begun. 
Infrastructure 

 Pete Gulbronson will be contacted for an update on the restrooms. 

 Audran and Makel replumbed and insulated the lines for the chiller pump.  

 A drainage channel was added to reduce the pooling of water in the area under 
the pergola. 

 The list compiled by the elevator inspector has been addressed. 

 The staff is working on backing up all downstairs LSS systems. 

 Staff will heat trace the city inline to determine any insulation needs. 

 Concern was expressed over the need for regular maintenance of the mini-split 
units.  For optimal operation and to reduce our power bill, the filters need to be 
kept clean. 

 
Committee Reports 
 
Finance Committee:   
Alexander announced that June was a record-breaking month at the center.  At the half-
way mark in the year, finances are on target.  The staff is doing an excellent job of 
controlling expenses.  Admissions are up 43% and programming revenue is up by 62%. 
Communications:   

 Wilson thanked Hutton and Williams for their help in distributing the tri-folds.   

 Wilson, Hutton, and Williams have formed a membership subcommittee.  A 
comprehensive membership plan will be made to the board this fall.  The 
discussion included setting yearly goals for membership, member benefits, 
member retention and corporate memberships.   

 Wilson and Reed shared information on CRM – Customer Relationship 
Management.  These systems are utilized by businesses and non-profits to 
manage donors and members.  The board agreed that a system for the center 
would be beneficial and will research the best fit for our purposes. 

 Approximately 60k has been collected to date for the Right Whale to Save 
Exhibit.  The decision was made to go ahead with plans for Whale Week, but to 
delay the major celebration/unveiling of the whale until the exhibit is complete. 

 Wilson recommended reaching out to the Ghost Pirates and the Savannah 
Bananas to explore partnerships. 

 Audran would like to expand the center’s creature trading cards to include other 
animals, including right whales.   

 Wohlust shared information on ESGs – Environmental Social Governance 
programs and stated that they may be a source of partnerships/funding for the 
center. 

- Page 53 -Item #13.



 Audran will research the cost of a transmitter for Ike before his release. 
 
Policy and Procedures: 
Audran is completing her review of the employee handbook.  The executive committee 
will then review it before bringing it to the board at the next meeting. 
 
Other Business 

 Pride announced a grant programming opportunity that includes an internship. 

 Wohlust shared a children’s book that was written by a local girl and requested 
that we carry the book.  Reed suggested a media partnership with the girl to 
promote both her book and the center. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8pm. 
 
Recorded by Kathryn Williams, secretary 
 
 

- Page 54 -Item #13.



File Attachments for Item:

14. Minutes, Planning Commission, August 21, 2023

- Page 55 -



 

 

  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION                                             CITY MANAGER  
Julie A. Livingston                                        Shawn Gillen 
Robert J. Matkowski 
Elaine McGruder 
S. Michelle Nooney                                                                                                            COMMUNITY DEVELOPMEN DIRECTOR 
Whitley Reynolds              George Shaw  
Marie Rodriguez          
Anthony Turpin                                         CITY ATTORNEY    CITY ATTORNEY   

                                         Edward M. Hughes
                                                                                                                      

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
 

MINUTES 
 

August 21, 2023 
 

Chair Whitley Reynolds called the August 21, 2023, Tybee Island Planning Commission meeting 
to order. Commissioners present were Marie Rodriguez, Elaine McGruder, Julie Livingston, 
Robert Matkowski, Anthony Turpin, and Michelle Nooney. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked for consideration of the July 17, 2023, meeting minutes. Elaine 
McGruder made a motion to approve. Julie Livingston seconded. The vote to approve was 
unanimous. 
 
Disclosures/Recusals: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there were any Disclosures or Recusals. There were none. 
 
Old Business: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there was any old business. There was none. 
 
New Business: 
1. MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones 
Ave -40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.  
George Shaw stated the applicant would like to create another lot of the existing lot. A year or two 
ago he separated one lot that was zoned C-2 from this parcel that was approved by the City Council. 
Now he is asking to create another lot to the south of the existing residence. Because of the setback 
required for the existing residence this lot is less than sixty feet which is required for new lots on 
Tybee. And there’s a carport that would be on the property line. For those two reasons staff 
recommends denial.  
Julie Livingston asked if the carport is non-conforming. George Shaw said yes. Elaine 
McGruder asked are their other parcels on Tybee that are narrower than the code allows. George 
Shaw yes there are many lots right now on Tybee that are narrower than sixty feet. Anthony 
Turpin asked is lot 92, 107 Jones Avenue commercial still. George Shaw yes, it is. Anthony 
Turpin stated his concern is that it is on a busy street. Thomas A. Smith III who lives at 216 East 
Point Dr, Talahi Island, approached the Planning Commission and stated at one point all these lots 
were Sixty feet wide. They were recombined by Ms. Sasser around 2011. The property at 107 Jones 
Avenue was approved by the City Council at some Fifty-three feet wide. This new lot is larger than 107 
Jones Avenue. Julie Livingston asked how many long-term and short-term rentals you own.  

 

- Page 56 -Item #14.



 

 

 
 
 
 
Thomas A. Smith III replied he has thirteen long-term rentals. Robert Matkowski asked if it is 
his intent that this property will also be a long-term rental. Thomas A. Smith III replied that was 
his intent. Julie Livingston stated she did some research on how many lots were smaller than this 
lot throughout the city and lost count as one hundred and twenty-eight on sagis. Thirty-six were on 
Jones Avenue. The smallest one is forty feet. There are entire blocks of lots that are fifty-three feet 
wide. She stated this would not be creating a substandard lot of record there is plenty of square 
footage and does not seem that it would cause any kind of problem. I hope you guys can understand 
the importance of creating even just one unit of good rental housing. It’s for the betterment of the 
community. Robert Matkowski asked Thomas A. Smith III would he be comfortable with a motion 
stating a ten-year commitment to a long-term rental. Thomas A. Smith III stated yes, he would. 
Elaine McGruder stated she does not think legally the city can put that kind of condition on a 
motion. Elaine McGruder made a motion to approve. Julie Livingston seconded. Voting in favor 
were Marie Rodriguez, Elaine McGruder, Julie Livingston, Robert Matkowski and 
Michelle Nooney. Voting against was Anthony Turpin. Motion to approve passed 5-1. 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment: 7:30pm 
Lisa L. Schaaf 

- Page 57 -Item #14.


	Top
	Item #1.	Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Quarter:Antar Khaalis
	Item #2.	Minutes, City Council Meeting, August 24, 2023
	Minutes

	Item #3.	Mike McCan, Ambucs, Beach Wheelchairs
	Item #4.	Tiffany Hayes, Chief, Tybee Island Police Department:  K-9 Program
	Item #5.	Jaime Spear:  Annual Employee Evaluation and Compensation Procedures
	Memo for Mayor and Council for 9.14.23 Meeting_Annual Employee Evaluation and Compensation Procedures

	Item #6.	MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: Requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones Ave -40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.
	SUB-VAR 109-111 JONES

	Item #7.	Agenda Request: Friends of the Tybee Post Theater dba Tybee Post Music Festival-add liquor to existing beer and wine
	Agenda Request- Friends of the Tybee Post Theater dba Tybee Post Music Festival-add liquor to exisitng permit

	Item #8.	DPW:  Purchase of a Pickup Truck, 2023 Nissan Frontier, 4x4 Crew Cab,  for Recycling Crew.  Funding for this truck is in the City of Tybee Island’s Fiscal Year 2024 approved budget, adopted June 22, 2023. The budget item for Public Work Vehicles was $50,000 and was a Capital purchase under account number 350-4210-54-2500, Itemized List of Capital Requests.
	Award Memo for Recycling Pick up Truck 2023

	Item #9.	Out of State Travel:  Pete Gulbronson:  Regional Storm Water Conference, October 4 - 6, 2023, Hilton Head, SC.  Continuing Education Units to retain Professional Engineering License for the State of Georgia
	SESWA Conference -Oct 4 through 6-2023

	Item #10.	Tracy O'Connell:  Amendment Agreements on Retirement Benefits with Moseley and Fobes
	2617_001
	Settlement Agreement signed 9-8-23 - William Moseley Addendum (4872-9581-2205.3)

	Item #11.	Barry Brown:  Memorial Park, Volleyball/Pickleball  Court location
	Item #13.	Minutes, TIMSC July 24, 2023
	Minutes of July 24

	Bottom



